
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION 
SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 
DATE: TUESDAY, 21 MARCH 2023  
TIME: 5:30 pm 
PLACE: Meeting Room G.01, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 Charles 

Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 
 
Members of the Commission 
Councillor Batool (Chair) 
Councillor Willmott (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors Crewe, Khan, Dr Moore, Riyait and Thalukdar 
Co-opted Members (Voting) 
Carolyn Lewis Church of England Diocese 
Mr Mohit Sharma  
 
Standing Invitees (Non-Voting) 
Youth Representatives   
Jennifer Day Teaching Unions representative 
Janet McKenna UNISON Branch Secretary 
 
Members of the Commission are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of 
business listed overleaf. 

 
For the Monitoring Officer 

Officer contacts: 
  
 

Tel: 0116 454 5843, e-mail: jacob.mann@leicester.gov.uk 
Leicester City Council, City Hall, 3rd Floor Granby Wing, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 

 



 

Information for members of the public 
 

Attending meetings and access to information 
 
You have the right to attend formal meetings such as Full Council, committee meetings, and 
Scrutiny Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes.   
 
However, on occasion, meetings may, for reasons set out in law, need to consider some 
items in private.  
 
Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council’s 
website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk or by contacting us using the details below. 
 
Making meetings accessible to all 
 
Wheelchair access – Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users. 
Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the plate on 
the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically. 
 
Braille/audio tape/translation - If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer 
(production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
Induction loops - There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms. Please speak to the 
Democratic Support Officer using the details below. 
 
Filming and Recording the Meeting - The Council is committed to transparency and supports efforts to 
record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of means, including 
social media. In accordance with government regulations and the Council’s policy, persons and press 
attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except Licensing Sub Committees and where 
the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to record and/or report all or part of that meeting.  
Details of the Council’s policy are available at www.leicester.gov.uk or from Democratic Support. 
 
If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the relevant 
Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can be notified in 
advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate space in the public 
gallery etc.. 
 
The aim of the Regulations and of the Council’s policy is to encourage public interest and 
engagement so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked: 
 to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption; 
 to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided; 
 where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting; 
 where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that they 

may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed. 
 
Further information  
 
If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact: 
 Jacob Mann, Democratic Support Officer on 0116 454 5843. 
Alternatively, email jacob.mann@leicester.gov.uk, or call in at City Hall. 
 
For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 454 4151. 
 
 

http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/
http://www.leicester.gov.uk/


 

USEFUL ACRONYMS IN RELATION TO OFSTED AND 
EDUCATION AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

 (updated November 2015) 
 

Acronym Meaning 

APS 
Average Point Score: the average attainment of a group of pupils; points 

are assigned to levels or grades attained on tests. 

ASYE Assessed and Supported Year in Employment 

C&YP Children and Young People 

CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service 

CFST Children and Families Support Team 

CICC Children in Care Council 

CIN Children in Need 

CLA Children Looked After 

CLASS City of Leicester Association of Special Schools 

COLGA City of Leicester Governors Association 

CPD Continuing Professional Development 

CQC Care Quality Commission 

CYPF Children Young People and Families Division (Leicester City Council) 

CYPP Children and Young People’s Plan 

CYPS 

Scrutiny 
Children, Young People and Schools Scrutiny Commission 

DAS Duty and Advice Service 

DCS Director of Children’s Services 

EAL English as an Additional Language 

EET Education, Employment and Training 

EHA Early Help Assessment 

EHCP Education Health and Care Plan 

EHP Early Help Partnership 

EHSS Early Help Stay Safe 

EIP Education Improvement Partnership 



 

ELG 
Early Learning Goals: aspects measured at the end of the Early Years 

Foundation Stage Profile 

EY Early Years 

EYFS Early Years Foundation Stage: (0-5); assessed at age 5. 

EYFSP Early Years Foundation Stage Profile 

FS 

Foundation Stage: nursery and school Reception, ages 3-5; at start of 

Reception a child is assessed against the new national standard of 

‘expected’ stage of development, then teacher assessment of 

Foundation Stage Profile areas of learning   

FSM Free School Meals 

GCSE General Certificate of Education 

GLD Good Level of Development 

HMCI Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector 

ICT Information, Communication and Technology 

IRO Independent Reviewing Officer 

JSNA Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

KPI Key Performance Indicator 

KS1 
Key Stage 1: National Curriculum Years (NCYs) 1 and 2, ages 5-7; 

assessed at age 7. 

KS2 Key Stage 2: NCYs 3, 4, 5, and 6, ages 7-11; assessed at age 11. 

KS3 Key Stage 3: NCYs 7, 8 and 9, ages 11-14; no statutory assessment. 

KS4 Key Stage 4: NCYs 10 and 11, ages 14-16; assessed at age 16. 

KTC Knowledge Transfer Centre 

LA Local Authority 

LADO Local Authority Designated Officer 

LARP Leicester Access to Resources Panel 

LCCIB Leicester City Council Improvement Board 

LCT Leicester Children’s Trust 

LDD Learning Difficulty or Disability 

 LESP Leicester Education Strategic Partnership 

LLEs Local Leaders of Education 

LP Leicester Partnership 

LPP Leicester Primary Partnership 



 

LPS Leicester Partnership School 

LSCB Leicester Safeguarding Children Board 

LSOAs Lower Super Output Areas 

MACFA Multi Agency Case File Audit 

NCY National Curriculum Year 

NEET Not in Education, Employment or Training 

NLEs National Leaders of Education 

NLGs National Leaders of Governance 

OFSTED Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills 

PEPs Personal Education Plans 

PI Performance Indicator 

PVI Private, Voluntary and Independent 

QA Quality Assurance 

RAP Resource Allocation Panel 

RI Requires Improvement 

SA Single Assessment 

SALT Speech and Language Therapy 

SCR Serious Case Review 

SEN Special Educational Needs 

SEND Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 

SIMS Schools Information Management Systems 

SLCN Speech, Language and Communication Needs 

SLEs Specialist Leaders of Education 

SMT Senior Management Team 

SRE Sex and Relationship Education 

TBC To be Confirmed 

TFL Tertiary Federation Leicester 

TP Teenage Pregnancy 

UHL University Hospitals Leicester 

WIT Whatever it Takes 

YOS Youth Offending Service 

YPC Young People’s Council 

 



 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION 
 
If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the 
nearest available fire exit and proceed to the area outside the Ramada Encore Hotel 
on Charles Street as directed by Democratic Services staff. Further instructions will 
then be given. 
 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 
 
 

 Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business to 
be discussed.   
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

Appendix A 
(Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 The minutes of the meeting of the Children, Young People, and Education 
Scrutiny Commission held on 24 January 2023 are attached and Members are 
asked to confirm them as a correct record.   
 

4. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCMENTS  
 

 
 

5. PETITIONS  
 

 
 
 

 The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any petitions.   
 

6. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, AND 
STATEMENTS OF CASE  

 

 
 
 

 The Monitoring Officer to report on any questions, representations, or 
statements of case received.   
 

7. EDUCATION PERFORMANCE REPORT 2022  
 

Appendix B 
(Pages 7 - 40) 
 

 The Strategic Director of Social Care and Education submits a report outlining 
the education outcomes and attainment in Leicester for 2022.   
 



 

8. UPDATE ON ENGAGEMENT WITH SCHOOLS 
FOLLOWING RECENT ISSUES IN THE EAST OF 
LEICESTER  

 

 
 
 

 The Strategic Director of Social Care and Education will present a verbal 
update on engagement work schools have been carrying out with families 
following the issues in the east of Leicester in September 2022.   
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME  
 

Appendix C 
(Pages 41 - 44) 
 

 The Commission’s Work Programme is attached for information and comment.   
 

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 

 
 

 





 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of the 
CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 
 
Held: TUESDAY, 24 JANUARY 2023 at 5:30 pm 
 
 
 

P R E S E N T : 
 

Councillor Batool (Chair)  
 

Councillor Khan Councillor Dr Moore 
Councillor Thalukdar 

 
Also Present 

 
Councillor Russell – Deputy City Mayor 

Councillor Cutkelvin – Assistant City Mayor 
* * *   * *   * * * 

52. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies were received from Councillor Willmott.   

 
53. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Members were asked to declare any interests they may have had in the 

business to be discussed.  
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 
 

54. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 AGREED:  

 
1. That the minutes of the meeting of the Children, Young 

People and Education Scrutiny Commission held on 6 
December 2022 be confirmed as a correct record.  

 
55. PETITIONS 
 
 The Monitoring Officer reported that none had been received.  

 

 

1

Appendix A



 

 

56. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, AND STATEMENTS OF CASE 
 
 The Monitoring Officer reported that none had been received.  

 
 

57. DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2023/24 AND DRAFT CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
2023/24 

 
 The Director of Finance submitted a report setting out the City Mayor’s 

proposed budget for 2023/24. The Commission was recommended to consider 
and comment on the Children, Young People and Education element of the 
report. The Commission’s comments would be forwarded to the Overview 
Select Committee as part of its consideration of the report before presentation 
to the meeting of Council on 22 February 2023. 
 
The Head of Finance presented the item, the Draft Revenue Budget was 
presented first, it was noted that:  
 

 The financial position of the Council remained very severe. The budget 
for 2023/24 could be balanced with reserves, however without making 
extra savings reserves would run out in 24/25.  

 Savings were being made throughout the financial year with appropriate 
consultation and this would continue.  

 There was no additional money from the Government to account for the 
high level of inflation which was impacting energy prices, staff pay and 
the waste contract. Departments generally would have to work within 
previous budgets and absorb inflationary costs.  

 It was anticipated that funding for local government would be cut in the 
future as part of further austerity from 2025.  

 Additional funding had been made available for Adult Social Care, 
however this was recycled funding from delayed reforms. The additional 
money would not cover the increase in ASC costs.  

 With respect to the Children, Young People, and Education element of 
the budget, an increase of £3m had been put in for CLA placement 
costs.  

 The number of EHCP referrals continued to grow substantially, this 
impacted the Dedicated Schools Grant and the General Fund which 
covered SEND Transport costs.  

 SEND Transport costs had risen substantially due to the rise in demand 
and the inflationary impacts of fuel prices. A growth of £1.5m had been 
put in for SEND Transport.  

 There would be a 5% increase in Council Tax.  

 The allocation for the High Needs Block had been increased however it 
only addressed the previous year’s overspend and would not be 
sufficient for 2023/24. There was a cumulative deficit of around £3.6m 
and this was likely to rise to £10m by the end of March 2023. DfE had 
extended legislation to allow the deficits to be ring fenced from Council 
reserves and carried forward until March 2026.  

 The most effective way of reducing the cost burden of SEND 

2



 

 

placements would be by reducing the demand for the EHCP.  

 DfE had stated that their SEND Improvement Plan would work to 
address the demand for EHCPs.  

 A formal Management Recovery Plan to mitigate the deficit was being 
produced in cooperation with DfE. This would need to go through the 
Scrutiny process.  

 DfE had mentioned informally that the council appeared to have either 
already taken or were in the process of implementing the measures that 
the DfE would recommend in order to make savings. 

 The costs of Taxi contracts for SEND Transport had risen dramatically. 
Therefore, increasing the use of the Personal Transport Budget was a 
high priority. Families were now offered the personal budget first and 
there was a high take up.  

 CLA numbers had stayed steady, this was despite an increase in 
poverty and the number of unaccompanied asylum seekers in the city. 
This was against the national trends. Ofsted had stated that the 
thresholds for taking children into care in Leicester were correct.  

 
Executive Members addressed the situation, noting their frustrations that the 
current situation meant that longer-term work to improve Services could not be 
a priority in light of the immediate crisis.  
 

 Work was ongoing to encourage parents that their children could be 
successfully supported without an EHCP in many cases.  

 In August 2021 there were 28 users of the Personal Transport Budget, 
by September 2022 this had increased to 155, a significant increase. 
This was largely due to the budgets being offered to parents first.  

 The allowance in the Personal Transport Plan was calculated on a per-
mile basis based on HMRV mileage rates. The rates for SEND taxi 
contracts were significantly higher on a per-mile basis than the cost of a 
personal budget.  

 There had previously been a closed framework for bidding for SEND taxi 
jobs, however there had recently been an open system brought in where 
a taxi firm only needed to meet a certain set of standards. There were 
around 35 firms on the new framework however most of those had not 
bid for any work and competition for individual jobs was not high.   

 Individual journeys on the SEND taxis were often combined but couldn’t 
always be due to individual complexities. The further use of buses and 
minibuses was being explored.  

 The Council’s in-house children’s homes were less expensive than 
independent provision, however these homes were often not at full 
capacity and were easier to access as they were in the city boundary. 
There was also a focus on longer term placements as opposed to 
distress purchasing.  

 Councils were not permitted to move large amounts from mainstream 
school funding to the High Needs Block without permission from either 
the Schools Forum and the Secretary of State. This was felt to be 
ineffective and was not being considered by the Council.  

 It was thought that the cumulative deficit in the High Needs Block would 

3



 

 

not be extinguished unless the Government wrote off the deficit.  
s 
The Capital Budget was presented next. It was noted that the only relevant 
issue in the Capital Programme was an increase of £15.6m for Children’s 
Services.  
 
AGREED:  
 

1. That the Commission notes the Draft Revenue Budget and Draft Capital 
Programme for 2023/24.  

2. That the Commission requests that the numbers of EHCP parental 
referrals be sent to Commission Members.  

 
 
 

58. PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT - THE IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON CHILDREN 
AND YOUNG PEOPLE IN THE EAST MIDLANDS 

 
 The Director of Public Health submitted a report by the Office for Health 

Improvement and Disparities into the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on 
children and young people in the East Midlands. 
 
It was noted that no Public Health Officer was present so Officers would not be 
able to answer detailed questions.  
 
It was noted that reports on performance data of exam results for pupils would 
be brought to a future meeting of the Commission, however early indications 
were that younger children were impacted by Covid measures more than older 
children. Schools were reporting an impact on social and emotional health.  
 
In response to Members’ questions, it was noted that:  
 

 There were several different ways of measuring poverty, the Council 
typically used a poverty index from Loughborough University. Absolute 
poverty data did not take housing costs into account.  

 Significant work was going on in Public Health to address the issue if 
children’s access to dental healthcare.  

 Work was ongoing to try to understand the impact of Covid on children’s 
mental health.  

 There had been no specific studies into the impact of Covid on 
inequalities. It was expected that studies on the wider impact of Covid 
would be ongoing for decades. Schools were too busy dealing with the 
current crisis to be able to study the causes in depth.  

 
AGREED: 

That the Commission requests that Public Health Officers attend 
a relevant Scrutiny Commission to discuss the report.  

 

4



 

 

59. RESIDENTIAL CHILDREN'S HOMES - VERBAL UPDATE ON 
CONSULTATION 

 
 The Strategic Director of Social Care and Education presented a verbal update 

on the ongoing informal engagement on the expansion of the in-house 
Children’s Residential Home provision.  
 
It was noted that conversations were ongoing with the neighbours of the 
properties proposed to be used as Children’s Homes alongside NHS partners. 
The homes were family home sized and normally only housed 5 children or 
fewer, so the impact on the local area was minimal. The buildings being used 
were already owned by the Council and would be converted for the new use.  
 
AGRRED:  

That the Commission requests a report on the outcome of the 
consultation and the wider picture of Children’s Residential 
Homes.  

 
60. WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 Members of the Commission were invited to consider content of the work 

programme and were invited to make suggestions for additions as appropriate 
to be brought to future meetings. 
 

61. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 The Principal Education Officer provided a short update noting that in 2019 a 

report was carried out into the underachievement of Black Caribbean and 
White working-class children in secondary schools. A task group was set up as 
a result of the report, one of the work strands of this group was around racial 
literacy training in collaboration with the Stephen Lawrence Centre. The racial 
literacy training had recently had its launch event and training would soon start 
with online sessions.  
 
In response to a Member question it was noted that the task group was also 
focusing on creating a equality mark which was based on a national model but 
would be specialised towards Leicester.  
 
There being no other business, the meeting closed at 7.14pm.  
 

5



6



  

 

 
 
 

Education 
Performance Report 

2022 
 

Education LMB 
CMB 

Children Young People and Schools Scrutiny 
Commission 

 
 

Date of meeting: 21 February 
9 March 

21 March 
 

Lead director/officer: Sue Welford 

 
 
 
 

7

Appendix B



 

 

Useful information 
 Ward(s) affected: All 
 Report author: Sue Welford, Principal Education Officer 
 Author contact details: sue.welford@leicester.gov.uk; 371138 
 Report version number: v2ii 
 

Summary 
Summer 2022 saw the return of Early Years Foundation Stage and National Curriculum 
assessments for children in primary schools.   These annual measures had been 
suspended during the period of the pandemic with the most recent previous assessments 
made in 2019.    
GCSE and other external qualifications taken at age 15/16 also returned to the normal 
methodology previously used in 2019. 
The 2022 results show that education outcomes in Leicester and nationally in primary 
school assessments are lower than before the pandemic.  There is a greater fall in 
outcomes for younger children as a greater proportion of their lives had been impacted by 
the pandemic.  
Outcomes for the end of primary (key stage 2) and the end of secondary (key stage 4) 
show that attainment fell in 2022 compared to 2019 but this fall was lower than in many 
areas of the country.  The data continues to show that in Leicester’s schools children 
make better than national progress in both primary and secondary schools but that the 
starting points on entry to school is well below national and comparator local authorities.  
Areas of strength in education performance in Leicester  

• Overall children make more progress in schools in Leicester than in schools 
nationally between key stage 1 and key stage 2 and between key stage 2 and 
GCSE. 

• Children eligible for Free School meals perform better than their peers nationally at 
all key stages.  

• Results for most groups of children at the end of primary and at the end of 
secondary improved compared to their peers nationally.  

• Children of Asian heritage and those who have English as an Additional language 
often have better outcomes and progress than their peers in Leicester particularly 
by the end of key stage 2 and key stage 4.  

Areas of concern 
• Overall attainment of all children in Leicester in all key stages is below national this 

means that on many attainment measures Leicester ranks in the bottom 10% of 
local authorities nationally.  

• The gap to national outcomes for each of Early Years Foundation Stage, Phonics 
and Key Stage 1 has widened since the pandemic.  

• The significant drop in the proportion of children who are “ready for school” at the 
end of their reception year and the impact this will have on their attainment at the 
end of school.  

• Outcomes for boys are generally lower than their girl peers across all key stages in 
Leicester.  

• Children who are not eligible for Free School Meals do significantly worse than their 
peers nationally.  

• Only 46% of children in Leicester who are in receipt of FSM met the expected 
standard for key stage 2 in reading, writing and maths in 2022.   

8

mailto:sue.welford@leicester.gov.uk


 

 

• Children of Asian heritage make worse progress and have poorer outcomes than 
their national peers.  

• White heritage children in Leicester do less well than other ethnic groups at most 
assessment points.  

The role of the local authority in relation to education and particularly school improvement 
has reduced over the past 12 years.   Schools are accountable to their governing bodies 
or their Multi-Academy Trusts and are inspected by Ofsted as to the quality of their 
provision.    
The education division of the council works in partnership to monitor the performance of 
all schools and where there are concerns about a local authority-maintained school these 
are raised with the governors as well as the headteachers.  The division also works 
closely with health professionals, those who work with families and early years children 
and with early years providers to share and better understand the issues for our youngest 
children in being ready for school.  

 
1. Recommended actions/decision 

To note the report and consider areas of strength and concern. 
The report will be shared with education colleagues across the city to ensure an 
awareness of the overall performance of children educated in the city.   

 
2. Scrutiny / stakeholder engagement 

None 
 

3. Background  
The results that are used in this report are for those children whose education is in 
Leicester and who are state funded.  It includes children who attend Leicester schools no 
matter where they live.  Children who live in Leicester but who are educated elsewhere, or 
in the independent sector are not included.  
In this report comparison of the 2022 results is made to those reported in 2019 and to the 
national (England) outcomes.  Some comparisons are provided for information only and 
should not be scrutinised in detail where the measures have changed.   As the DfE have 
stated: “We strongly discourage users of the data from drawing conclusions based on 
direct comparisons with performance data from earlier years.” 
The appendices provide detailed data on comparing the outcomes for different groups of 
pupils in Leicester to those of the same group nationally.  
Assessments are made at the end of the Early Years Foundation Stage for all children in 
schools or in nursery settings at the end of the school year in which the child turns 5.   
2022 assessment was against revised Early Years Foundation Stage curriculum and was 
not moderated.  Comparison of these results with previous years should therefore be 
treated with caution.   
National assessments of children in primary schools are made in reading, writing and 
mathematics at the end of year 6 (end of key stage 2)– the last year of primary school and 
the end of year 2 – the last year of key stage 1.   Children in year 1 are also assessed on 
their phonics skills and (from 2022) in year 4 on their multiplication tables.  
Children take nationally recognised GCSEs and other qualifications normally during the 
summer term in year 11.  Year 11 is the last year of statutory schooling and is the year in 

9



 

 

which children are normally aged 15 at the beginning of the academic year and reach the 
end of key stage 4. 
The data used in this report includes attainment data – the outcomes that the children 
have achieved and for key stage 2 and key stage 4 progress data.  Progress data is a 
measure of the difference between the attainment at the previous age and the current 
attainment compared to those of other children nationally. The greater the progress score, 
the greater the progress made by the pupil compared to the average for pupils with similar 
prior attainment.  Individual pupil progress scores are not shared with parents or pupils.  
The groups provided in the report include Gender, Ethnicity by major group, SEN status, 
Free School Meals and Language status.  The demographic information is provided by 
parents to the school and is collected through school census.   It should be noted that free 
school meals eligibility only includes those children whose parents have applied for free 
school meals and have been found to be eligible due to the benefits they receive.  
Children whose parents do not apply or who do not receive the qualifying benefits are not 
included in this group.  
The charts in the body of the report are provided to show the performance of different 
groups of pupils compared to the performance of other local authorities.  The best or most 
improved outcomes and ranks compared to national data for the same groups are in the 
top right quadrant. 
 

 
Figure 1: Diagram showing the layout of the quadrant charts 

Within the charts there is consistency in the colours for the different groups shown below.  
 

All pupils  Orange 
Boys  Blue 
Girls  Pink 
Asian  Dark Red 
Black  Tan 
White  Dark Grey 
EHCP (Education Health Care Plan)  Bright Green 
SEN (SEN support in schools)  Dark Green 
FSM (Known to be eligible for Free School Meals)  Light Blue Grey 
English (as first language)  Cream 
EAL (English as an Additional Language)  Purple 

 

 

10



 

 

4. Detailed report 
5.1. Early Years Foundation Stage 
5.1.1. Children are assessed at the end of the school year in which they turn 5.  In 2019, 

the final assessment year before the pandemic, children were assessed by their 
teachers against the Early Years Foundation Stage Profile based on the Early 
Learning Goals.  A sample of 25% of schools were externally moderated.   From 
autumn 2020 the Early Years Foundation stage was updated with revised Early 
Learning Goals and the requirement for the assessments to be moderated was 
removed due to the introduction of a new online Baseline Assessment.   This 
means that a direct comparison between results of children who completed the 
Early Years Foundation Stage Profile in 2019 and those who completed it in 2022 
should be treated with caution. 
Children are assessed as to whether they have met the expected standard across 
17 Early Learning Goals.  These 17 are grouped into 7 areas of learning.  In this 
report data is provided for the Communication and Language area of learning and 
analysis of the comparisons for the Good Level of Development (GLD)measure.  A 
child is at a Good Level of Development if they are at the expected standard across 
all the early learning goals in the following areas of learning: Communication and 
Language; Physical Development; Personal Social and Emotional Development; 
Literacy; and Mathematics.  Communication and Language and Literacy must be 
assessed in English. The remaining areas can be assessed in the context of any 
language. 
Results for all children at the end of the Foundation Stage across schools and Early 
Years settings are submitted to the local authority for checking before submitting to 
the Department for Education.  

5.1.2. After several years of improvement up to 2019 the % of children who were at a 
good level of development (GLD) fell in 2022.  In Leicester this drop was 8%points 
to 60% whereas nationally there was a 7%point drop to 65%.  There was a similar 
drop for both boys and girls.   This measure is considered useful for determining 
whether children are “Ready for School” and demonstrates the impact of the 
pandemic and the challenge for schools with only 3 out of 5 children in Leicester 
reaching this measure.    

5.1.3. Reviewing the outcomes for different groups using the GLD measure show that the 
gap between National and Leicester outcomes are much closer for pupils of Asian, 
Black and any other ethnic group but pupils who are of Mixed or White heritage do 
less well.  The outcome for Mixed pupils was 58% compared to the same group 
nationally at 67%.   
Compared to all 152 local authorities pupils of White heritage are in the bottom 10 
of performance in 2022 for this measure and those of Mixed heritage in the bottom 
10%.  

5.1.4. Children who have SEN including those with an EHCP do significantly worse than 
other pupils with less than 1 in 5 achieving a good level of development.  Results 
for these children also fell between 2019 and 2022. 

5.1.5. Using Free School Meals as an indicator of deprivation results show that a greater 
proportion 52% of deprived children in Leicester (rank 47 out of 152) are ready for 
school than the same group nationally 49%.  However, in 2019 61% of Leicester 
children achieved this measure demonstrating that children who are eligible for free 
school meals were more greatly affected by the pandemic than other children.  

11



 

 

Outcomes in Leicester for those who are not eligible for free school meals, whilst 
higher than their FSM peers, is significantly worse than national and ranks at 149.  

5.1.6. 60% of children whose first language is believed to be other than English reached 
a good level of development both in Leicester and nationally.  The gap in outcomes 
between Leicester and national is more apparent for those who have English as 
their first language with only 63% of children in Leicester compared to 67% 
nationally.  

 
Figure 2 Comparison of Good Level of Development in 2022 in Leicester to National with ranks by group 

5.1.7. In summary for Early Years Foundation Stage the comparison of outcomes in 
Leicester in 2022 to national shows that only those children with free school meals 
do better than their national peers.  The outcomes of children of all pupils, those of 
white heritage and those with SEN support do significantly worse.   These low 
starting points of children starting formal education at the beginning of year 1 
means that they have to make very good progress in order to catch-up with their 
peers.   
This data for 2022, whilst it should not be compared directly to 2019 or previous 
years, shows an increased drop from national figures for all groups.  Data for 2019 
and previous years also showed a significant gap to national performance.   
Children who completed the foundation stage in 2022 had considerable disruption 
to their opportunities for learning between the ages of 2 and 5 due to the pandemic.   

5.2. Phonics 
5.2.1. The Year 1 phonics screening check is undertaken during a week in June.  

Children are required to read to their teacher 40 phonetic “words”.  These are 
groups of letters which the child is required to read using their phonic skills.  It 

12



 

 

assesses whether the child is on track to become a fluent reader.  The pass mark 
is 32 out of 40.   
All children in year 1 are included in the cohort but a teacher can disapply a child if 
they do not feel it would be appropriate for the child to be assessed e.g. if a child is 
newly arrived or at an early stage of phonic skill.  Children who fail to meet the 
standard or are disapplied have to take the test again in the summer of year 2. 
Results for all children in year 1 and those in year 2 who did not achieve the 
standard when they were in year 1 are submitted to the local authority for checking 
before submitting to the Department for Education. 

5.2.2. The proportion of children who met the standard across the country fell in 2022 
following the pandemic.  The children who were in year 1 in 2022 were in nursery 
at the beginning of the pandemic and suffered significant disruption throughout 
their reception year.  

5.2.3. In Leicester 72% of children met the standard compared to 81% in 2019 – a drop of 
9% points.  Nationally there was a 7%point drop to 75%.  In 2019 Leicester’s rank 
was 91 out of 152 and in 2022 it was 127 out of 152.  

5.2.4. The difference in performance in phonics between different groups of pupils in 
Leicester was similar to the variations for EYFS with Mixed and White heritage and 
those with SEN doing less well than for other groups.   Children eligible for FSM 
performed less well than their non-FSM peers in Leicester but better than FSM 
children elsewhere. 

5.2.5. In summary there was a bigger drop in the proportion meeting the phonics 
standard in Leicester than there was nationally. This has widened the gap and 
schools will be addressing this gap in phonics skills for these children now in year 
2.    

5.3. Key Stage 1 
5.3.1. Children are assessed at the end of Key Stage 1 during the summer term of year 2.  

The child is judged as to whether they have reached the expected standard, (or are 
at Greater Depth or are working below the expected standard), through moderated 
teacher assessment, in reading, writing and mathematics.  They are also assessed 
in science. Children undertake tests and tasks in reading and mathematics, during 
May, which are used to inform the teacher assessment.  The local authority is 
responsible for moderating a 25% sample of schools to ensure consistency.  
Academies can choose which local authority will moderate them. 
Results data for all children who are in year 2 are submitted to the local authority 
for checking before submitting to the Department for Education at the end of June.  
At key stage 1 results are reported on the proportion of children who have achieved 
the expected standard in reading, writing and mathematics separately.   

5.3.2. The percentage of children reaching the expected standard for reading fell to 61% 
in 2022 compared to 70% in 2019.  This is a fall of 9%points and widens the gap to 
national which fell by 8%points to 67%. There was a similar drop for both boys and 
girls.    
In writing the fall was 11%points in Leicester down to 54%.  Nationally there was a 
similar drop to 58%.  The gap remains at 4%points.  The gap in performance 
between boys and girls for this measure is 14%points in Leicester – compared to 
12%points nationally.  This was similar in 2019. 

13



 

 

In mathematics the fall was 9% points to 64% compared to a national fall of 
8%points to 68%.  The proportion of girls reaching the expected standard in 
mathematics was greater at 65% than the boys at 64%.  This is a closer gap than in 
2019 when girls outperformed boys by 3%points.   

5.3.3. At Key stage 1 in 2022 children of White heritage in Leicester performed less well 
than other groups across all three subjects.   In writing less than half (48%) the 
children of White heritage reached the expected standard compared to 57% 
nationally for the same group.  59% Asian and 58% Black heritage children 
reached this measure.   
Different ethnic groups in Leicester did less well across reading, writing and 
mathematics than other areas when compared to the same outcomes in 2019.  
Outcomes for White heritage pupils were marginally better but remain in the bottom 
10 local authorities for the percentage of children achieving the expected standard.  
Rankings fell for all ethnic groups except for Asian heritage in mathematics.   

5.3.4. A greater proportion of children with an EHCP achieved the expected standard in 
each of reading (7%), writing (3%) and mathematics (10%) than in 2019 and this 
closed the gap with national outcomes which fell in 2022.  This gave an 
improvement in ranking for Leicester compared to other local authorities.   
For children who have SEN support in schools there was a lower proportion of 
children meeting the standard across all subjects. However, for this group, there 
was a smaller drop in outcomes than there was nationally and rankings improved 
compared to other local authorities 

5.3.5. Outcomes for the 25% of the KS1 children who are eligible for Free School Meals 
were higher for all three subjects than the same group nationally (24% of the 
cohort).   The drop in performance from 2019 was 8%points for reading and writing 
and 7%points in mathematics. The ranking for the outcomes of this group of pupils 
in Leicester has also improved – from 70 to 52 out of 152 local authorities in 
reading, from 78 to 37 in writing and 73 to 43 in mathematics.   
Children who are not eligible for Free School Meals perform significantly worse in 
Leicester than the same group nationally across all measures and this is reflected 
in the ranking with Reading 147 (out of 152), writing 140 and mathematics 140.  

5.3.6. Children who use a first language other than English performed less well in reading 
than those whose first language is believed to be English with 60% reaching the 
expected standard compared to 64%.  This is a widening of the gap compared to 
2019 when the proportions were 70% with EAL compared to 71%.   
In writing 55% of children with EAL met the standard with only 54% of non-EAL 
pupils.  This was a drop of 11 points from 2019   
Outcomes for mathematics showed a bigger fall in the proportion of children with 
EAL reaching the expected standard compared to 2019, from 75% down to 65%.  
The fall in outcomes for English speakers was 7% points.  
When comparing these groups with other local authorities the rankings for those 
with EAL are better than for those with English as their first language.  Ranking has 
fallen from 2019 for all subjects for those with EAL in Leicester whereas for those 
with English as their first language have improved.    

5.3.7. In summary the charts below compare whether the difference between Leicester 
and national outcomes for key stage 1 have closed or got wider.  Negative figures 

14



 

 

show that the gap has increased.  The y axis (vertical) looks at the change in rank 
compared to other local authorities.  
The charts show that for all except those with an EHCP there has been a widening 
of the gap to national. For children with an EHCP there has been a closing of the 
gap and an improvement in rank for all subjects.    
The ranking in reading for boys, Asian pupils and those with English as an 
additional language demonstrates not only had a widening of gap but also a 
significant fall in rankings compared to others  
Children’s attainment in Leicester’s schools at the end of key stage 1 was impacted 
by the pandemic with the majority of groups widening the gap to national and whilst 
some rankings improved the overall attainment was low.  This has given a lower 
starting point for children as they enter key stage 2 

 
Figure 3 KS1 Reading Leicester change from 2019 to 2022 compared to national change and change in rank. 

 

15



 

 

 
Figure 4 KS1 Writing Leicester change from 2019 to 2022 compared to national and change in rank. 

 
Figure 5 KS1 Mathematics Leicester change from 2019 to 2022 compared to national & change in rank. 

16



 

 

 
5.4. Key Stage 2 
5.4.1. Children are assessed at the end of Key Stage 2 during the summer term of year 6.  

They undertake timed, externally marked tests in Reading, Mathematics and 
Grammar Punctuation and Spelling.  Writing is teacher assessed in school and a 
range of completed writing is reviewed to make this assessment.  Science is also 
assessed through unmoderated teacher assessment. 25% of schools each year 
are externally moderated by the local authority for writing assessment.  The 
percentage of children who achieve the expected standard and the higher standard 
in the tests and assessment are reported for each local authority and nationally.  In 
2022 these results have not been published school by school.  These performance 
tables are due to return in 2023. 
Teacher assessments for writing and science for all children and in reading and 
mathematics for those children who are below the level of the tests are submitted 
via the local authority to the Department for Education at the end of June.  
Externally marked test results are sent to the schools and the local authority in the 
first week of July. During September schools can apply for children who are new 
arrivals to be removed from the reported results.  These are children who have 
arrived from overseas, from a country that does not use English as an official 
language, since the beginning of year 5.  
In addition to the outcome measures children’s results in reading, writing and 
mathematics at the end of key stage 2 are matched to their key stage 1 results that 
were assessed at the end of year 2.  A progress score for each school/ local 
authority is created by comparing the progress across the whole year group 
nationally for that subject.  This gives a positive score if the progress is better than 
average and a negative score if it is worse.  
In 2022 only 91% of the children being assessed at the end of key stage 2 had 
results from key stage 1.  Therefore 9% of the cohort are excluded from the 
progress measures.  

5.4.2. The proportion of children in Leicester reaching the expected standard in reading, 
writing and mathematics in 2022 was 58%.  This is a drop of 5% points since 2019 
but closes the gap to national to 1% point from a 2%point gap in 2019.   These 
proportions are similar for both boys and girls.  Girls outperform boys by 
10%points. 
In comparison to other local authorities Leicester’s rank for this measure has 
improved from 107 in 2019 to 81 in 2022.   This is reflected in the improvement in 
ranks for each of the proportion of children who reached the expected standard in 
each of reading, writing and mathematics.  The ranking for girls is lower than that 
for boys in every measure.  
Outcomes in reading have improved by 3% points since 2019 compared to a 
national increase of 1%point.   Outcomes for mathematics fell by 7%points and for 
writing by 8% points.  Developing sustained writing was particularly difficult to 
undertake remotely during school closures and whilst schools worked hard there 
was insufficient time on return to class to address the deficit in this area of 
children’s learning.  
The average progress between key stage 1 and key stage 2 for this cohort was 
above the national average in all three subjects.  In both reading and writing the 
average progress made by Leicester children was better than the average progress 
compared to national in 2019.  In mathematics the progress was significantly above 

17



 

 

national and is ranked at 17 out of 152 local authorities.   Nationally and in 
Leicester the average progress for boys is less than for girls however in Leicester 
the rank of progress for boys is 51 (out of 152) compared to 73 for girls in reading, 
16 compared to 24 in mathematics, and 99 compared to 108 in writing.  

5.4.3. Children of Asian heritage outperform other groups both locally and nationally in 
meeting the expected standard in reading, writing and mathematics.  The gap to 
national for this group is only 2%points compared to the overall 5%point gap.  The 
rank for Asian children comparing the same group in other LAs is 106 out of 152 
In Leicester children of White heritage perform least well of the major groups with 
only 51% of pupils achieving the required standard in reading, writing and 
mathematics.   This is compared to 58% for the same group nationally and is in line 
with outcome in 2019.  The rank this group in Leicester for 2022 is 140 out of 152.  
This is a slight improvement from 2019.   
Outcomes for individual subjects in 2022 were similar to national for Asian pupils 
and those of Black and Mixed heritage.  
Progress for all groups in each of reading, writing and mathematics in 2022 was 
better than national apart from reading for those of any other ethnic group or those 
whose ethnicity was unclassified (a total of 185 pupils).  Only 60% of children 
unclassified had key stage 1 results and were included in these measures. 

5.4.4. Children who had an EHCP had better outcomes at the end of Key Stage 2 in 
Leicester than those nationally and results were better than those in 2019.  Of 
those in receipt of SEN support in school outcomes were better than the same 
groups nationally apart from in reading.  These results were less good than the 
same measures in 2019.   
Compared to other local authorities the ranking for all measures for those with 
EHCP had improved and lie in the top half of all local authorities.  For those with 
SEN support rankings still predominantly lie in the top half except for the proportion 
of children achieving the expected standard in reading.   These ranks have fallen 
since 2019.  

5.4.5. Children eligible for Free School Meals in Leicester have better outcomes in 
reading, writing and mathematics and in the combination of the subjects than the 
same group nationally.  However less than half of children (46%) eligible are 
achieving this measure.  In 2019 50% did achieve this measure.  The ranking for 
this combined measure is 38 out of 152 local authorities.  
Progress for those eligible for Free School Meals in Leicester for each of reading 
(rank 33), writing (rank 33) and mathematics (rank 19) is lower than the average 
progress for all pupils but is better than the progress made by this group nationally 

5.4.6. The proportion of children who are known to have English as an Additional 
Language achieving reading writing and mathematics in 2022 was 60% a drop of 
4%points from 2019 which is more of a drop than national which fell 3% points to 
61%.  For those who have English as their first language 56% achieved this 
measure compared to 58% nationally.  This was a 6%point drop locally and a 
7%point nationally.    
Progress for children with EAL was better in Leicester than national for each 
subject apart from writing.  Their progress was also better than those who had 
English as their first language.  
 

18



 

 

5.4.7. In summary the following charts show the change in gap to national for each 
group between 2019 and 2022 and the 2022 rank compared to other local 
authorities.  
Analysis in this format shows that whilst 2022 outcomes in reading, writing and 
mathematics for pupils with FSM and EHCP lie in the top 25% of all local 
authorities and the gap closed.  For pupils with EAL and those of Asian heritage 
(who are the top performing ethnic group in Leicester) the gap widened.    
Children in Leicester’s primary schools make better progress than nationally and for 
most groups this has improved between 2019 and 2022.  Both nationally and 
locally attainment fell but for most groups in Leicester this was less of a drop than 
nationally following the pandemic.  

 

 
Figure 6 KS2 RWM Leicester change in gap to national and the 2022 rank 

 

19



 

 

 
Figure 7 KS2 Reading Progress: Leicester change in gap to national and the 2022 rank 

 
Figure 8 KS2 Mathematics Progress: Leicester change in gap to national and the 2022 rank 

20



 

 

 

 
Figure 9 KS2 Writing Progress: Leicester change in gap to national and the 2022 rank 

5.5. Key Stage 4 - GCSE 
5.5.1. The results reported are for GCSE and other nationally recognised examinations 

taken either before or during year 11 (the year in which most children reach age 
16). These results are reported for each school, local authority and nationally.  In 
2022 results by school are published on the DfE website with a warning about the 
validity of comparison and the uneven impact of the pandemic on 2021/22 school 
and college performance data.   
During June schools can apply for children who are new arrivals to be removed 
from the reported results.  These are children who have arrived from overseas, 
from a country that does not use English as an official language, since the 
beginning of year 10. 
There are many measures used to review aggregated results for children at the end 
of key stage 4.  In this report the analysis focuses on the Attainment 8 score, the 
Progress 8 score and the Basics 9-5 measure.   There is also mention of the 
proportion of children entering and achieving the English Baccalaureate (EBACC). 
Attainment 8 is an average total score of up to 8 approved qualifications.   Each 
qualification is allocated a score in line with the GCSE grades between 9 (high) and 
1(low).  The qualifications that count in this measure must include English and 
mathematics, science, humanities and language and up to 3 other GCSE or 
approved technical qualifications.   English and mathematics are double counted.  
Progress 8 score is a calculation of the average progress pupils made across the 8 
qualifications between the end of key stage 2 (average of reading and mathematics 

21

https://www.find-school-performance-data.service.gov.uk/?searchtype=search-by-la&la=856&keywords=Leicester


 

 

scores) and the end of key stage 4 compared to other children with the same 
starting points.  Only 89% of pupils in the 2022 GCSE cohort had results at the end 
of key stage 2.  This is normally because they were not in the country at the time of 
the key stage 2 assessments. Therefore, these pupils are not included in the 
progress measures.  
The Basics 9-5 measure is the proportion of children who achieved both English 
and mathematics GCSE at grade 5 and above 
The EBACC measure is the proportion of children who have achieved at least a 
grade 5 (or grade 4) at GCSE in each of English, mathematics, a science, a 
modern language and a humanities subject.   

 

Figure 10:Comparison of changes between 2019 and 2022 of Attainment 8 scores and the impact on rank. 

5.5.2. In 2022 the Attainment 8 score for children in Leicester was 46.1 which was below 
the national figure of 48.8.  This closed the gap on national attainment by 1point 
from the figures in 2019.  Compared to other local authorities Leicester’s rank is 
117 out of 152 an improvement from 132 in 2019. 
The proportion of pupils achieving Basic 9-5 in Leicester improved from 37.2% in 
2019 to 44.5% in 2022.  Nationally the improvement was 6.4% points to 49.8%.  
Progress for children in Leicester from their Key Stage 2 starting point was 0.07.  
This was better than in 2019 (0.02) and better than nationally (-0.03). This gave a 
rank of 44 among the 152 local authorities. 
There was an increase of 10% points from 27% to 37% in the proportion of children 
entering the full range of subjects for the EBACC (rank improved from 137 to 79). 
This was reflected in the proportion of children (17.3%) attaining grade 5 and 
above in the 5 different areas.   

22



 

 

Girls both in Leicester and nationally outperform boys in GCSE. However, the gap 
between boys and girls in Leicester closed slightly in 2022. Local authority ranks for 
both boys and girls across all measures have improved.   

5.5.3. Children of White heritage perform least well across all Key Stage 4 measures with 
an average attainment 8 score of 37.2 (which is less than a grade 4 on average 
across all the 8 included qualifications). This is only 0.7 better than the score in 
2019.  This group of pupils also had a progress measure of -0.64 which is the 
same as in 2019.   The local authority rank for white pupils in each measure was 
150 for Attainment 8 and 148 for Progress 8. 
Asian pupils perform the best across all measures in 2022 with an Attainment 8 
score of 52.1 and Progress 8 score of 0.60. This gave ranks of 112 and 79 
respectively.   

 

Figure 11 Comparison of percentage change between 2019 and 2022 in Progress 8 by group and the impact on rank. 

5.5.4. Children who completed key stage 4 in 2022 with an Education Health Care Plan 
do significantly less well than their peers on these measures.   There was a slight 
improvement in most measures.  The proportion of children achieving the Basic 9-4 
almost doubled to 9.4%.  Progress made by these children was less in 2022 (-1.71) 
compared to -1.52 in 2019.  This led to a drop in ranking to 141 out of 152 local 
authorities. 
Of the children who have SEN support in schools only 15.8% achieved Basics 9-5 
but a further 11% had both English and mathematics at a grade 4.  The Attainment 
8 score improved to 29.7 and progress also improved to -0.62.  This was still below 
the progress made in 104 other LAs from the same starting points.  

23



 

 

5.5.5. Children who are eligible for FSM had better outcomes across all measures in 
2022 than in 2019.  Outcomes are similar for this group nationally and ranks show 
that Leicester’s performance is in the top third of all local authorities. This is an 
improvement on the results for 2019. 
For those who are not eligible for free school meals the Attainment 8 score of 49.3 
is just below an average of grade 5 across all 8 qualifications.  This is a significant 
improvement on the average of 4.5 in 2019. The rank for this measure and this 
group has improved from 134 to 113.  The Progress 8 measure has also improved 
to 0.31 from 0.16.  Progress for this group is better than national and all but 25 
other local authorities.  

5.5.6. Children with English as an Additional Language do better than those who speak 
English as their first language across all measures.  This is the same as the 
national picture.  Leicester’s Attainment 8 score for those who are not EAL is 41.5 
(rank 149) compared to EAL children who achieved 49.9 (rank 91).   
50% of children with EAL achieved grade 5 or better in both English and 
mathematics compared to only 37.9% of English speakers.  There was a 10%point 
increase for those with EAL compared to 2019 but only a 0.5%point increase for 
English speakers.   

5.5.7. In summary at the end of Key stage 4 and Figure 9 for Attainment 8 shows that 
only pupils of White heritage and those who speak English as their first language 
had a wider gap than their peers nationally. Most groups closed the gap to national 
and improved their rankings.   
Figure 10 highlights that whilst some groups have closed the gap to national and 
improved rankings those of Black and Asian heritage have had a slight widening of 
the gap to national and children with English as an additional language and those 
with an EHCP have a wider gap and a fall in rank.  
The results achieved by our secondary schools show that while the pandemic 
impacted on children and outcomes are overall lower than in 2019 progress 
compared to national was better in Leicester and the attainment gap closed slightly.  

 
6. Financial, legal, equalities, climate emergency and other implications 
6.1. Financial implications 

There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. 
 

 
6.2. Legal implications  

There are no legal implications directly associated with this report. 
 

 
6.3. Equalities implications  

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) is a general duty that applies to schools, and 
other public bodies. It requires schools to have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other prohibited conduct, improve equality of 
opportunity; and foster good relations between different groups of people: those who 
share a protected characteristic and those who do not.  
 

24



 

 

Under the Equality Act 2010, it is unlawful for any education provider, including a private 
or independent provider, to discriminate between pupils on grounds of disability, race, sex, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, religion or belief, or sex.  
 
The report provides an insight into the results from the annual assessment measures for 
various stages of education. There are no direct equalities implications arising from the 
report as it is for noting. The 2022 results show that education outcomes in Leicester and 
nationally in primary school assessments are lower than before the pandemic. Moving 
forward it will be important to consider impacts on children who are more vulnerable, 
including those with special educational needs and disabilities, children from poorer 
backgrounds, and those who are Looked After. Children who have SEN including those 
with an EHCP do significantly worse than other pupils. The pandemic led to considerable 
disruption to the learning of pupils in the city.  The Early Years Foundation Stage 
assessment sets the foundations for literacy and is crucial to children being able to move 
onto literacy in the national curriculum. The challenges presented by the COVID-19 
pandemic mean that schools will be cautious about making comparisons with performance 
data from previous years, and directly with other schools/ academy trusts, and when 
comparing with national or local authority averages. Overall attainment of all children in 
Leicester in all key stages is below national. 
 
It would be useful to have monitoring of and research into the longer term effects of the 
disruption to learning of the pandemic in secondary as well as primary schools, to 
determine the extent to which targeted measures are effectively supporting the schools 
and pupils most affected. 
 
Equalities Officer, Surinder Singh, Ext 37 4148 
 

 
6.4. Climate Emergency implications 

There are no significant climate emergency implications directly associated with this 
report. 
 
Aidan Davis, Sustainability Officer, Ext 37 2284 
 

 
6.5. Other implications (You will need to have considered other implications in 

preparing this report.  Please indicate which ones apply?) 
 
 

 
7. Background information and other papers: 

7.1. Useful links 
o Key stage 2 attainment, Academic Year 2021/22 

 
o Secondary accountability measures 

 
8. Summary of appendices:  

8.1. Tables of results for Early Years Foundation Stage 

25

https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/key-stage-2-attainment
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1134998/Secondary_accountability_measures_2022_guidance_for_maintained_secondary_schools__academies_and_free_schools.pdf


 

 

8.2. Tables of results for Phonics 
8.3. Tables of results for Key Stage 1 
8.4. Tables of results for Key Stage 2 
8.5. Tables of results for Key Stage 4 

 
9. Is this a private report (If so, please indicate the reasons and state why it 

is not in the public interest to be dealt with publicly)?  
 

10. Is this a “key decision”? If so, why? 
 
 No  
 

26



  

 

8.1. Tables of results for Early Years Foundation Stage showing the outcomes for each group and measure 
 

 2022 2019 
All pupils and gender Leicester England Leicester England 

All All Boys Girls All Boys Girls All Boys Girls All Boys Girls 
Number of Pupils 4502 2294 2208 622583 318249 304334 4702 2449 2253 638946 327425 311521 
%Communication and Language 61.7 55.8 67.7 67.1 60.8 73.6 Change in measure so not comparable 
% Good Level of Development 60 55 66 65 59 72 68 62 74 72 66 78 

 

Major Ethnic groups 2022 2022 

 Leicester England 

Ethnicity  Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Number of Pupils 2046 376 360 1433 126 74613 31183 45311 439484 13574 
%Communication and Language 64.7 62.2 30.6 60.4 54.8 66.1 62.4 68.8 68.3 56.6 
% Good Level of Development 63.7 60.1 58.1 58.8 53.2 64.9 60.6 67 66.3 55.3 

 

Major Ethnic Groups 2019 2019 

 Leicester England 

2019 Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Number of Pupils 1914 383 375 1622 N/A 69185 31136 41685 459403 N/A 
%Communication and Language         N/A         N/A 
% Good Level of Development 74 63 69 65 N/A 71 69 73 73 N/A 

 

27



 

 

 
 

SEN status  2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

SEN EHC 
plan 

SEN 
support 

No 
SEN 

EHC 
plan 

SEN 
support No SEN EHC 

plan 
SEN 

support 
No 
SEN 

EHC 
plan 

SEN 
support No SEN 

Number of Pupils 67 382 3971 13630 49629 552523 47 372 4110 10747 50490 564913 
%Communication and 
Language 3 18.8 67.7 5 25.8 72.8             
% Good Level of Development 1.5 17.3 66.3 3.6 22.9 70.9 4 25 74 5 29 77 

 
 
 

Free School Meals eligibility 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

FSM FSM 
Eligible 

Not 
known 
to be 
FSM 

eligible 

FSM 
Eligible 

Not 
known 
to be 
FSM 

eligible 

FSM 
Eligible 

Not 
known 
to be 
FSM 

eligible 

FSM 
Eligible 

Not 
known 
to be 
FSM 

eligible 
Number of Pupils 732 3770 113882 508701 668 4034 89742 549204 
%Communication and 
Language 53.1 63.3 50.9 70.7         
% Good Level of Development 51.6 61.9 49.1 68.8 61 69 57 74 

 
  

28



 

 

 

First language 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

Language 

Known 
or 

believed 
to be 

English 

Known 
or 

believed 
to be 
other 
than 

English 

Known 
or 

believed 
to be 

English 

Known 
or 

believed 
to be 
other 
than 

English 

Known 
or 

believed 
to be 

English 

Known 
or 

believed 
to be 
other 
than 

English 

Known 
or 

believed 
to be 

English 

Known 
or 

believed 
to be 
other 
than 

English 

Number of Pupils 1947 2382 484926 121530 2116 2414 500066 123805 
%Communication and 
Language 65.1 60.7 69.1 61.3         
% Good Level of Development 63.3 59.8 67.1 60.1 71 68 74 67 

 
  

29



 

 

Tables of results for Phonics showing the outcomes for each group and measure 

All pupils and gender 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 
All  All Boys Girls All Boys Girls All Boys Girls All Boys Girls 

Number of pupils 4651 2350 2301 636787 325791 310996 4758 2411 2347 649490 332670 316820 
% Met Standard 72 69 76 75 72 79 81 77 85 82 78 85 

 

Major Ethnic group 
2022 

2022 
Leicester England 

2022 Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Unclassified Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Unclassified 

Number of pupils 2145 399 394 1453 102 158 76421 32542 45023 453272 13702 15827 
% Met Standard 74 77 72 71 62 49 79 76 77 76 71 54 

 
 

Major Ethnic group 
2019 2019 

 Leicester England 

2019 Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Unclassified Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Unclassified 

Number of pupils 1989 434 393 1710 118 114 74208 33284 42450 475499 12692 11357 
% Met Standard 84 85 83 77 75 57 85 83 84 82 79 63 

 
 

30



 

 

SEN Status 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

SEN EHC 
plan 

SEN 
support No SEN EHC 

plan 
SEN 

support No SEN EHC 
plan 

SEN 
support No SEN EHC 

plan 
SEN 

support No SEN 

Number of pupils 135 484 3951 18399 69551 542396 98 537 4068 13552 71577 559918 
% Met Standard 9 43 79 19 44 82 12 50 87 19 48 88 

 

Free School meals 
eligibility 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

FSM FSM Eligible 
Not known 
to be FSM 

eligible 
FSM Eligible 

Not known 
to be FSM 

eligible 
FSM Eligible 

Not known 
to be FSM 

eligible 
FSM Eligible 

Not known 
to be FSM 

eligible 

Number of pupils 1112 3539 141338 495449 813 3945 105552 543938 
% Met Standard 66 74 62 79 74 82 70 84 

 

First Language 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

Language 
Known or 

believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other 
than English 

Known or 
believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other 
than English 

Known or 
believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other 
than English 

Known or 
believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other 
than English 

Number of pupils 2023 2530 500421 128180 2198 2498 512166 543938 
% Met Standard 73 73 76 75 81 81 82 82 

 

 
 
 

31



 

 

Tables of results for Key Stage 1 showing the outcomes for each group and measure 
 

All pupils and gender 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 
All KS1 All Boys Girls All Boys Girls All Boys Girls All Boys Girls 

Number of pupils 4738 2430 2308 639415 327949 311466 4941 2552 2389 666549 341288 325261 
% Reading expected 61 57 65 67 63 71 70 66 74 75 71 79 
% Writing expected 54 47 61 58 52 64 65 58 71 69 63 76 
% Maths expected 64 64 65 68 68 67 73 72 75 76 75 77 

 
 

Major Ethnic group 
2022 2022 

 Leicester England 

Ethnicity  Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Number of pupils 2146 399 358 1548 148 76723 33270 44606 457276 13967 
% Reading expected 64 63 64 58 66 69 67 70 67 59 
% Writing expected 59 58 55 48 56 62 59 60 57 52 
% Maths expected 69 62 66 61 66 71 64 69 68 62 

 
  

32



 

 

 

Major Ethnic Group 
2019 2019 

 Leicester England 

2019 Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Number of pupils 2078 466 388 1769 122 76462 34913 42708 490554 12675 
% Reading expected 75 70 72 65 70 77 76 77 75 68 
% Writing expected 71 62 68 58 67 73 71 71 69 64 
% Maths expected 79 70 75 69 76 79 74 76 76 72 

 

SEN Status 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

SEN EHC 
plan 

SEN 
support 

No 
SEN 

EHC 
plan 

SEN 
support No SEN EHC 

plan 
SEN 

support 
No 
SEN 

EHC 
plan 

SEN 
support No SEN 

Number of pupils 136 562 3961 20576 82214 530997 126 606 4153 15892 84943 562187 
% Reading expected 7 29 68 12 30 75 3 32 78 13 33 83 
% Writing expected 3 21 61 7 20 66 2 24 73 9 25 78 
% Maths expected 10 33 72 14 33 75 5 39 81 14 36 84 

 
  

33



 

 

 
Free School Meals 
eligibility 

2022 2019 
Leicester England Leicester England 

FSM FSM Eligible 
Not known 
to be FSM 

eligible 
FSM Eligible 

Not known 
to be FSM 

eligible 
FSM Eligible 

Not known 
to be FSM 

eligible 
FSM Eligible 

Not known 
to be FSM 

eligible 

Number of pupils 1174 3564 153310 486105 830 4111 107182 559367 
% Reading expected 52 64 51 72 60 72 60 78 
% Writing expected 44 57 41 63 52 67 53 72 
% Maths expected 54 68 52 73 61 76 61 78 

 

 

 
 

  First Language 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

Language 
Known or 

believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other 
than English 

Known or 
believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other 
than English 

Known or 
believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other 
than English 

Known or 
believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other 
than English 

Number of pupils 1965 2681 500821 131747 2335 2526 524452 138156 
% Reading expected 64 60 68 64 71 70 76 72 
% Writing expected 54 55 58 57 65 65 70 68 
% Maths expected 66 65 68 67 73 75 76 75 

34



 

 

8.2. Tables of results for Key Stage 2 showing the outcomes for each group and measure 
 

All pupils and gender 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 
All KS2 All Boys Girls All Boys Girls All Boys Girls All Boys Girls 

Number of pupils 4892 2521 2371 661617 338606 323011 4730 2458 2272 639818 326350 313467 
% RWM expected 58 53 63 59 55 63 63 58 68 65 61 70 
% Reading expected 73 68 78 75 70 80 70 66 75 74 69 79 
Ave Reading prog sc 0.57 -0.07 1.25 0.04 -0.75 0.86 0.39 -0.18 1.00 0.03 -0.54 0.62 
% Maths expected 73 74 72 72 73 71 80 80 81 79 79 80 
Ave Maths prog sc 1.27 2.18 0.32 0.04 0.83 -0.79 1.44 2.02 0.81 0.03 0.73 -0.69 
% Writing expected 68 61 75 70 63 77 76 71 82 79 73 85 
Ave Writing prog sc 0.32 -0.46 1.15 0.05 -0.77 0.89 0.29 -0.51 1.15 0.03 -0.73 0.82 

 

Major Ethnic group 
2022 

2022 

Leicester England 

2022 Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Unclassified Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Unclassified 

Number of pupils 2140 465 366 1736 125 60 79362 37987 42411 481312 14308 8590 
% RWM expected 64 61 59 51 58 40 66 59 61 58 55 44 
% Reading expected 78 75 77 67 67 56 78 75 77 74 68 58 
Ave Reading prog sc 0.93 0.99 0.41 0.17 -0.21 -1.06 0.93 0.46 0.42 -0.18 0.90 -0.10 
% Maths expected 80 73 70 65 70 52 80 71 72 70 71 57 
Ave Maths prog sc 2.33 0.86 -0.03 0.42 1.50 0.15 2.17 0.05 -0.04 -0.33 2.18 -0.31 
% Writing expected 72 71 69 61 68 48 74 70 72 69 64 54 
Ave Writing prog sc 0.42 1.23 -0.08 0.08 0.66 -0.94 1.07 0.57 0.32 -0.19 1.22 -0.27 

 

35



 

 

 

Major Ethnic Group 
2019 

2019 

Leicester England 

2019 Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Unclassified Asian Black Mixed White 

Any 
other 
ethnic 
group 

Unclassified 

Number of pupils 2038 480 332 1720 107 53 74391 38595 38335 474122 12691 6446 
% RWM expected 68 68 61 56 65 42 69 64 66 64 61 49 
% Reading expected 72 70 71 66 70 53 74 72 75 73 67 58 
Ave Reading prog sc 0.30 0.08 -0.03 0.60 1.81 -0.82 0.60 0.24 0.35 -0.12 0.85 0.16 
% Maths expected 87 81 76 74 84 68 84 78 79 78 79 62 
Ave Maths prog sc 2.22 0.83 0.05 0.92 3.49 0.40 1.94 0.31 -0.08 -0.31 2.37 -0.41 
% Writing expected 82 79 74 70 77 62 82 78 80 78 73 60 
Ave Writing prog sc 0.79 0.15 -0.35 -0.12 1.60 -1.86 1.00 0.52 0.23 -0.19 1.31 -0.31 

 

SEN status 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

SEN EHC 
plan 

SEN 
support No SEN EHC 

plan 
SEN 

support No SEN EHC 
plan 

SEN 
support No SEN EHC 

plan 
SEN 

support No SEN 

Number of pupils 165 748 3954 29093 101141 530964 144 727 3850 21365 93868 527398 
% RWM expected 10 23 67 7 21 69 6 30 71 9 25 74 
% Reading expected 15 41 82 16 44 84 11 41 78 16 41 81 
Ave Reading prog sc -3.09 -0.47 0.94 -4.49 -1.17 0.51 -3.46 0.00 0.61 -3.62 -1.01 0.35 
% Maths expected 16 41 81 15 40 81 12 53 88 17 46 87 
Ave Maths prog sc -1.65 0.42 1.58 -3.88 -0.91 0.43 -3.58 1.02 1.72 -3.96 -1.02 0.37 
% Writing expected 12 30 77 11 30 80 10 42 86 14 39 88 
Ave Writing prog sc -2.79 -1.00 0.73 -4.11 -1.55 0.58 -3.59 -1.27 0.75 -4.30 -1.73 0.52 

 

36



 

 

Free School meals 
eligibility 

2022 2019 
Leicester England Leicester England 

FSM FSM Eligible 
Not known to 

be FSM 
eligible 

FSM Eligible 
Not known to 

be FSM 
eligible 

FSM Eligible 
Not known to 

be FSM 
eligible 

FSM Eligible 
Not known to 

be FSM 
eligible 

Number of pupils 1417 3475 167249 496721 926 3804 108893 535687 
% RWM expected 46 63 42 64 50 66 47 68 
% Reading expected 63 77 61 79 60 72 58 76 
Ave Reading prog sc -0.16 0.88 -0.88 0.35 0.13 0.45 -0.77 0.19 
% Maths expected 60 78 55 77 68 83 63 82 
Ave Maths prog sc -0.02 1.82 -1.22 0.46 0.40 1.70 -0.94 0.23 
% Writing expected 57 72 54 75 64 79 64 81 
Ave Writing prog sc -0.16 0.53 -0.80 0.33 -0.67 0.53 -0.72 0.18 

 

First Language 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

Language 
Known or 

believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other than 
English 

Known or 
believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other than 
English 

Known or 
believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other than 
English 

Known or 
believed to 
be English 

Known or 
believed to 

be other than 
English 

Number of pupils 2312 2548 519148 141369 2209 2505 506664 135450 
% RWM expected 56 60 58 61 62 64 65 64 
% Reading expected 72 74 75 73 71 69 74 70 
Ave Reading prog sc 0.18 0.98 -0.16 0.88 0.35 0.42 -0.14 0.77 
% Maths expected 69 77 71 75 77 83 78 80 
Ave Maths prog sc 0.23 2.35 -0.43 2.01 0.45 2.45 -0.43 2.06 
% Writing expected 67 69 70 70 75 78 79 77 
Ave Writing prog sc -0.10 0.75 -0.22 1.16 -0.35 0.92 -0.25 1.23 

 
 

37



 

 

8.3. Tables of results for Key Stage 4 showing the outcomes for each group and measure 
 

All pupils and 
gender 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 
Gender Total Boys Girls Total Boys Girls Total Boys Girls Total Boys Girls 

Number of pupils 4140 2138 2002 585222 299063 286159 3576 1839 1737 540046 275209 264837 
Average Att 8 46.1 42.7 49.8 48.8 46.3 51.4 43.1 39.3 47.2 46.8 44.2 49.6 
% Basics 9-5 44.5 40.2 49.2 49.8 47.1 52.6 37.2 32.5 42.1 43.4 40.2 46.8 
% Basics 9-4 63.5 58.6 68.7 68.8 66.2 71.6 55.1 49.5 61.0 64.9 61.3 68.7 
% entered EBacc 37.2 30.7 44.1 38.8 33.9 43.9 27.5 23.2 32.0 40.1 34.4 46.0 
% EBacc 9-5 17.3 13.0 21.9 20.2 16.5 24.2 12.5 9.8 15.3 17.2 13.2 21.3 
% EBacc 9-4 24.1 18.1 30.5 26.8 22.1 31.6 17.6 14.1 21.2 25.1 19.8 30.5 
EBacc APS 4.1 3.8 4.4 4.3 4.1 4.5 3.7 3.4 4.0 4.1 3.9 4.3 
Avg P8 Score 0.07 -0.17 0.32 -0.03 -0.21 0.15 0.02 -0.30 0.36 -0.03 -0.27 0.22 

 

Major Ethnic Group 
2022 

2022 
Leicester England 

Ethnicity Asian Black Mixed White Other Unclassified Asian Black Mixed White Other Unclassified 

Number of pupils 1986 478 284 1246 83 57 66118 35760 33927 424686 11514 10839 
Average Att 8 52.1 46.0 43.3 37.2 43.5 49.6 54.8 48.8 49.4 47.8 50.8 42.9 
% Basics 9-5 56.0 42.7 37.7 29.2 32.5 43.9 61.9 49.6 49.9 47.8 53.8 42.4 
% Basics 9-4 74.7 66.3 56.7 45.7 59.0 73.7 77.6 69.3 68.5 67.5 70.7 59.7 
% entered EBacc 47.1 33.1 37.3 21.7 50.6 42.1 51.6 47.0 42.1 35.4 52.8 33.9 
% EBacc 9-5 24.6 11.9 15.8 8.1 15.7 15.8 28.3 20.4 22.3 18.6 26.0 16.6 
% EBacc 9-4 32.7 20.9 21.5 11.9 28.9 19.3 36.0 29.1 29.1 24.7 34.1 22.3 
EBacc APS 4.7 4.0 3.8 3.2 4.1 4.3 4.9 4.3 4.4 4.2 4.6 3.8 
Avg P8 Score 0.60 -0.03 -0.31 -0.64 0.32 0.58 0.54 0.18 -0.04 -0.14 0.54 -0.40 

 

38



 

 

Major Ethnic 
Group 2019 

2019 
Leicester England 

2019 Asian Black Mixed White Other Unclassified Asian Black Mixed White Other Unclassified 

Number of pupils 1736 405 215 1108 66 36 57606 30819 26905 405622 9207 7891 
Average Att 8 48.5 40.9 39.2 36.5 41.7 36.2 51.5 45.2 47.7 46.2 48.5 40.7 
% Basics 9-5 46.7 27.4 29.8 27.3 31.8 36.1 52.3 38.2 44.0 42.5 45.2 35.5 
% Basics 9-4 64.9 48.6 48.8 44.0 45.5 41.7 71.0 59.9 65.0 64.4 65.9 55.2 
% entered EBacc 35.7 26.2 18.6 16.6 36.4 16.7 50.9 46.9 44.4 37.5 52.8 33.3 
% EBacc 9-5 17.7 8.4 6.5 6.9 12.1 8.3 24.1 15.4 19.8 16.0 22.2 14.0 
% EBacc 9-4 24.0 13.8 10.2 10.6 16.7 8.3 33.1 24.3 28.0 23.6 32.1 20.1 
EBacc APS 4.2 3.5 3.3 3.0 3.7 3.0 4.6 4.0 4.2 4.0 4.4 3.5 
Avg P8 Score 0.56 -0.02 -0.46 -0.63 -0.17 -0.57 0.47 0.13 0.00 -0.11 0.50 -0.38 

 

SEN Status 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

SEN 
SEN 

State 
EHC 

SEN 
supp 

No 
SEN 

SEN 
State 
EHC 

SEN 
supp No SEN 

SEN 
State 
EHC 

SEN 
supp 

No 
SEN 

SEN 
State 
EHC 

SEN 
supp No SEN 

Number of pupils 203 430 3507 24854 67492 491564 142 348 3086 20371 56527 462016 
Average Att 8 10.9 29.7 50.2 14.3 34.8 52.5 9.1 26.3 46.6 13.7 32.6 50.1 
% Basics 9-5 2.5 15.8 50.5 6.9 22.4 55.8 2.1 9.8 41.9 5.5 16.8 48.4 
% Basics 9-4 9.4 26.7 71.1 13.4 38.9 75.9 4.9 21.8 61.1 11.1 32.3 71.3 
% entered EBacc 3.4 16.5 41.7 4.1 17.8 43.5 0.7 10.9 30.6 4.0 16.9 44.6 
% EBacc 9-5 0.5 3.5 20.0 1.3 5.7 23.2 0.0 1.4 14.3 1.1 4.1 19.5 
% EBacc 9-4 1.0 6.3 27.6 1.9 8.5 30.6 0.7 2.3 20.1 1.9 6.8 28.4 
EBacc APS 0.8 2.5 4.5 1.1 2.9 4.6 0.7 2.1 4.0 1.1 2.7 4.4 
Avg P8 Score -1.71 -0.62 0.27 -1.33 -0.47 0.10 -1.52 -0.71 0.18 -1.17 -0.43 0.08 

 

39



 

 

Free School Meals 
eligibility 

2022 2019 
Leicester England Leicester England 

FSM FSM FSM all 
other FSM FSM all 

other FSM FSM all 
other FSM FSM all 

other 

Number of pupils 1042 3098 121320 463902 610 2966 75871 464175 
Average Att 8 36.6 49.3 36.9 51.9 34.3 45.0 35.0 48.7 
% Basics 9-5 29.6 49.6 28.4 55.4 24.4 39.8 22.6 46.8 
% Basics 9-4 45.5 69.5 46.9 74.6 39.3 58.3 41.5 68.7 
% entered EBacc 25.1 41.2 26.2 42.1 17.0 29.6 25.1 42.6 
% EBacc 9-5 9.7 19.9 8.8 23.2 6.2 13.8 6.4 18.9 
% EBacc 9-4 14.1 27.4 13.4 30.2 10.0 19.1 11.1 27.3 
EBacc APS 3.1 4.4 3.1 4.6 2.8 3.9 2.9 4.3 
Avg P8 Score -0.60 0.31 -0.59 0.11 -0.58 0.16 -0.53 0.06 

 

First Language 2022 2019 

 Leicester England Leicester England 

Language English 
Other 
than 

English 
English 

Other 
than 

English 
English 

Other 
than 

English 
English 

Other 
than 

English 

Number of pupils 1837 2288 484160 97814 1706 1868 450056 87560 
Average Att 8 41.5 49.9 48.4 51.2 41.0 45.1 46.6 48.3 
% Basics 9-5 37.9 50.0 49.0 54.2 33.7 40.3 43.2 44.9 
% Basics 9-4 56.1 69.4 68.4 71.6 51.8 58.0 65.0 65.0 
% entered EBacc 28.5 44.3 36.4 51.3 22.7 31.9 38.2 50.5 
% EBacc 9-5 12.0 21.7 19.3 25.1 11.2 13.7 16.5 20.7 
% EBacc 9-4 17.5 29.5 25.5 33.4 15.7 19.3 24.1 30.0 
EBacc APS 3.6 4.5 4.2 4.6 3.5 3.9 4.0 4.3 
Avg P8 Score -0.50 0.60 -0.12 0.55 -0.41 0.50 -0.11 0.48 

 

40



Page 1 of 4 
 

Updated February 2023 
 

Children, Young People and Education (CYPE) Scrutiny Commission  

WORK PROGRAMME 2022 - 23 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting Items Actions Arising 
 

Progress 
 

14 June 
2022 
 

1) Provision of Taxi Framework for Vulnerable 
People  

2) Review of High Needs Block – SEN 
Support for Pupils in Mainstream 

3) Education White Paper – high level 
assessment 

 

   

6 
September 
2022 

1) SEND Green Paper – consultation  
response 

2) New SEND inspection framework - update 

THIS MEETING WAS ADJOURNED DUE 
TO IT BEING INQUORATE  

 

25 October 
2022 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1) Virtual School 
2) SEND Pupil Place Planning 
3) SEND Inspection Framework 
4)  SEND Accelerated Progress Plan (verbal 

update) 

5)  SEND Green Paper Consultation 

Response (for information) 

6) Ashfield Academy Consultation  
7) Fostering Annual Report (for information 

only) 

8) Adoption Annual Report (for information 
only) 

9) Verbal update on Covid-19 in schools 
 

  

41

A
ppendix C



Page 2 of 4 
 

Updated February 2023 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting Items Actions Arising 
 

Progress 
 

Tuesday 6th 
December 
2022 

1) Children not in state-maintained schools 
2) Youth Justice Plan 
3) Journey to Excellence: One Year on from the 

Ofsted Inspection of Local Authority Services 
(ILACS) 

4) Update – Commissioning approach to SEND 
transport 

  

Tuesday 
24th 
January 
2023 

1) Draft General Fund 2023/24 Revenue Budget 
& Draft Capital Programme  

2) Impact on children’s learning of the impact of 

Covid (Primary schools)-verbal report  

3) Residential children’s homes – verbal update 
on consultation  
 

  

Tuesday 
21st March 
2023 

1) Education performance 2022 report 
2) A verbal update on the impact and work with 

schools to reassure families re: following 
Leicester East disorders 
 

Sue/Martin 
Sue/Martin 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

42



Page 3 of 4 
 

Updated February 2023 
 

 

 

Draft Forward Plan / Suggested Items for 2022/23 

Topic Details / Progress Proposed Date 
 

Performance Reporting and data 
monitoring, including  
Quarterly and Qualitative Reports 

The commission to receive regular ‘Quarterly Quality Assurance & 
Performance’ Reports - (‘Performance Book’ and ‘Dashboard’ is sent 
to members as background information). 
 
Note: a request for the sharing of LADO reports to resume, was given in 
the Oct 2021 meeting by outside representatives.   

STANDING ITEM – as 
appropriate 
 

COVID19 Update and Vaccinations in 
Schools 

This was requested as a standing item by Chair following the Oct 
2021 meeting. 

STANDING ITEM – as 
appropriate 

Safeguarding Partnership Annual 
report 

To receive a report for members consideration.  
 

tbc  

School Attendance Annual Report 
(incorporating update on Children Missing 
Education and Elective Home Education)  

To receive a report on progress for members consideration tbc 

Report on Multisystemic Therapy-Child 
Abuse and Neglect (MST-CAN) & 
Functional Family Therapy (FFT) 
intervention programmes (Annual Report) 

To receive a report on progress for members consideration Oct 2022? 

Adventure playgrounds Item carried over from the previous work programme. tbc 

School Nursing Provision Potential joint Item with Health and Well-being Scrutiny 
Commission 

HWB on 1 December.   

Increasing numbers of ECPs and the 
impact on schools 

Possible scrutiny review  

Family Hubs   

Ash Field Academy Residential 
Consultation Report 

  

43



Page 4 of 4 
 

Updated February 2023 
 

 

44


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes

	7 EDUCATION PERFORMANCE REPORT 2022
	9 WORK PROGRAMME

